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3 IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA) UNITED STATES OF
AMERICA,) Criminal Case No.) Complainant) 1:21-cr-00623 (CRC)) v.) 1:22-cr-00025 (APM)) KIRSTYN
NIEMELA,)) Defendant) _____________________________________ DEFENDANT KIRSTYN NIEMELA's
AMENDED SENTENCING MEMORANDUM Plaintiff KIRSTYN NIEMELA ("Niemela") by undersigned counsel,
hereby submits to the Court her Sentencing Memorandum. I. INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW Despite the
tendency of the Government of wanting to sentence Defendants based on the original allegations in the charging
documents, not what was proven to be factually true, the facts proven at trial concerning Ms. Niemela do not
support jail time or the punishment as requested by the Government. As shown in the Transcript of the first day
of the trial on January 24, 2023, attached for the Court's convenience, Kirstyn Niemela was unconstitutionally
and unlawfully convicted of the behavior of a crowd in complete disregard of any proof of her own individual guilt
or innocence. The prosecution in violation of the Fifth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution and due process
clauses attempted to infer to Ms. Niemela simply seeing ("guilty viewing") an altercation between Michael
Eckerman and a police officer in which Niemela herself played no role whatsoever. Of course one 1 3 does not
become guilty of a crime by seeing a crime occur. Ms. Niemela's walk through the Capitol was, the Government
argued at trial, disorderly and disruptive not because of anything she did but because Mr. Eckerman had a brush
with an officer and Ms. Niemela might have seen it happen. And other people were disorderly or disruptive, so
therefore Niemela was as well. The prosecution similarly convicted Ms. Niemela on the actions of others by
claiming she was part of a crowd, which crowd – not Niemela – did various things. Collectivist punishment is not
permitted nor constitutional within U.S. criminal law. Not only is collective punishment outlawed by the Geneva
Convention1 but it is unconstitutional under due process and the Fifth Amendment. Despite the persistent
arguments of the U.S. Attorney's Office, no person under the U.S. Constitution may be convicted or sentenced
for what other people did. Accordingly, the conviction is invalid and subject to vacation and/or reversal on appeal.
In the transcript, on cross-examination from NIEMELA's attorney Richard F. Montieth, Esq., elicited the following
testimony from the Government's witness Captain Tia Summers on cross- examination at pages 417:11 - 418:15
-- Attorney Gordon, during direct examination, asked you a couple of questions towards summarizing what
happened to some Capitol Police officers. Do you recall that question? A. Yes. Q. And some have been hurt in
different ways, right? A. Yes. Q. And some had been hit by bear spray? A. Yes. Q. And you elaborated a little bit
about that, right? A. Yes. Q. Certainly you are not alleging or inferring 1 Article 87(3) of the 1949 Geneva
Convention III and provides: "Collective punishment for individual acts and cruel punishment are forbidden." 2 3
at all that Ms. Niemela touched a police officer? A. No. Q. Shoved a police officer? A. No. Q. Yelled at a police
officer? A. No. Q. Used bear spray? A. No. Q. Vandalized any property? A. No. Q. No evidence whatsoever of
that, right? A. No. Q. And no -- you're not even inferring that she did that. A. No, sir. Q. Okay. In fact, you can't
identify her, right? A. No, sir. Q. This is the first time you've ever seen her? A. Yes. And on page 426:9-16: Q. Can
you tell us where Ms. Niemela was when the snow fences were removed? A. No, sir. Q. Can you tell us where
she was when the bike racks were removed? A. No, sir. Q. Can you tell us when she was present on the lawn?
A. No, sir. And the Government's questioning of Lieutenant Brooke Detorie, included at Transcript page 449:6-14
-- Q. Okay. Do you recall any specific individuals from around the time that we just witnessed? A. No. Q. Okay.
What about any female rioters? Do you remember any of them specifically? A. No. Q. Okay. Do you recognize
the defendant in this case, Ms. Niemela? A. No. 3 3 And the Government's questioning of Lieutenant Brooke
Detorie, included at Transcript page 450:21-25 (Emphasis added) – Q. Did any of your colleagues get hurt that
day? A. Of the ten officers that I took over with me, three. Q. Okay. Were any of them under your supervision? A.
Yes. Q. I'm sorry. Do you need a tissue? And Agent Elizabeth Glave of the U.S. Secret Service testified at
Transcript pages 473:24 – 474:9 -- So when you say you were outside the Senate Chamber, were you able to
look out the window and see what was happening with the crowd? Were you learning about this from other
agents? A. At one point I walked over to the window, and I was able to see the crowds. Q. And what did you see?
A. I saw large crowds that were walking towards the Capitol, and it was very noisy. You could hear the yelling. Q.
Did you see any violence? A. No. On cross-examination by Defendant's counsel Mr. Garrity, Agent Elizabeth
Glave testified at Transcript pages 486:7-9 -- Q. Fair to say that Ms. Niemela was not among the individuals you
saw through the archway? A. I don't recall seeing her, no. The trial possibly proved a violation of 18 U.S.C.
1752(a)(1) except that the Government has persistently insisted upon the view that a grounds or building can be
restricted even without providing 4 3 any actual notice to the public that the normal status of the U.S. Capitol as a
national museum and national meeting place of U.S. Citizens with their leaders and the U.S. Capitol Grounds as
a national park has been temporarily altered. The Government insists that if they have a paper buried
somewhere at the bottom of a filing cabinet, even if the public does not know about it, then an area becomes
legally restricted. Or that Congress which routinely spends trillions of dollars may rely upon 11 inch by 14 inch
paper signs run off on a photocopier (even if possibly laminated) not likely to remain visible on easily-movable
bike racks throughout the day. There was argument that if someone had checked the Capitol's website they
might have seen notice of restrictions due to COVID. Thus, the Government actually asserts, it was "common
knowledge." But by whom? How do they know? Furthermore, the charge is of violation 18 U.S.C. 1752(a)(1)
regarding a Secret Service protectee, not closure for any other reason. An area closed for COVID is not subject
to 18 U.S.C. 1752(a)(1). The Government further continues its post-McFadden (USA v. Martin) claims that if
people saw trouble, that means that an area was restricted. But Defendant is charged under 18 U.S.C. 1752(a)
(1), not for noticing problems. An area does not become legally restricted because people are misbehaving in it,
but because it is declared to be restricted to help guard a Secret Service protectee. If a brawl breaks out among
some soccer fans the stadium does not become restricted legally as to the rest of the people watching the soccer
match. It merely means that those who are fighting will be arrested and the soccer match will go on. An alarm
sounding may mean that a trouble-maker pulled an alarm as a malevolent prank. So, it is dubious that the
Government produced sufficient evidence to convict on Count III under 18 U.S.C. 1752(a)(1). However, it is
certain that no evidence was presented at trial to convict Ms. Niemela of Counts IV, VI, or VIII, other than trying
to engage in collectivism and crowd guilt. For example, The Statement of Facts at Dkt. #1-1 from Criminal Case
No. 1:21-cr-00623 and the Statement 5 3 of Facts at Magistrate Case No. 1:22-mj-00011-AJ, Dkt. # 1 are the



only factual presentations that are available. The Indictment and Superseding Indictment are devoid of any
factual allegations. However, these Statements of Facts address almost entirely co-Defendants Mike Eckerman
and Stefanie Nicole Chiguer. Furthermore, the Statements of Fact belabor in great detail the identification
process undertaken through social media and informants attempting to identify the three co-Defendants. What's
left concerning the events on or about January 6, 2021, is minimal. The Statements of Fact allege that Niemela
posted live videos from the demonstrations at the U.S. Capitol. A tipster claimed that Niemela is a member of the
Proud Boys, which is demonstrably false and untrue. The tipster claimed that Niemela broke a window which is
demonstrably false and untrue. The tipster alleged that Niemela carries an illegal handgun with her, which is also
demonstrably false and untrue. It appears that the tipster was trying to smear Niemela. The Statements of Fact
claim that Niemela posted photos on Facebook of her and another woman outside of the U.S. Capitol. The
Statements of Fact then claim that co-Defendant Stefanie Nicole Chiguer was inside the U.S. Capitol that
afternoon, but the photographs used to claim that are fuzzy in the extreme and do not establish any such
conclusion. The Statements of Fact also claim that Niemela posted photos on Facebook from inside the Capitol
and that a CNN video recording (wondering how CNN can be inside the Capitol without being charged) shows
Niemela inside the Capitol. However, again these photos are incredibly fuzzy and poor-quality (because they
include so many people at the same time). The Statement of Facts also claims that – using the same cell phone
geolocation technology that Dnesh D'Souza used in 2000 Mules to show that the 2020 presidential election was
stolen by fraudulent votes -- a phone number associate with Niemela "was identified as having utilized a cell site
[cell tower] consistent with providing service to a geographic area that included the interior of the 6 3 United
States Capitol building." Obviously, this is incredibly vague and imprecise. Using the same technology as Dnesh
D'Souza's expose of the election, the Statements report that "Google reports that its "maps display radius"
reflects the actual location of the covered device approximately 68% of the time." Therefore, the Statements of
Fact allege that there was probable cause to allege that Niemela violated 18 U.S.C. § 1752(a)(1). But no other
facts were alleged, found, or proven. The FBI agent then goes on to free-associate probable cause of 18 U.S.C.
§ 1752(a)(2); and 40 U.S.C. § 5104(e)(2)(D) and 40 U.S.C. 5104(e)(2)(G). However, no facts were presented to
support anything other than possibly 18 U.S.C. § 1752(a)(1). II. PROCEDURAL HISTORY AND CHARGES
Defendant Niemela was charged by Superseding Indictment filed April 27, 2022, at Dkt # 24 with the following
Counts, intermingled with other Counts brought against Michael Eckerman. Niemela was tried by jury and was
convicted of Counts 3, 4, 6 and 8 on January 26, 2023. Count III: Entering and Remaining in a Restricted
Building or Grounds 18 U.S.C. § 1752(a)(1): *** (a) Whoever— (1) knowingly enters or remains in any restricted
building or grounds without lawful authority to do so; *** [may be punished with up to one year in jail, fined, etc.]
COUNT IV: Disorderly and Disruptive Conduct in a Restricted Building 18 U.S.C. § 1752(a)(2) (emphases added)
requires that: (a)Whoever— *** 7 3 (2) knowingly and with intent to impede or disrupt the orderly conduct of
Government business or official functions, engages in disorderly or disruptive conduct in, or within such proximity
to, any restricted building or grounds when, or so that, such conduct, in fact, impedes or disrupts the orderly
conduct of Government business or official functions;or attempts or conspires to do so, shall be punished as
provided in subsection (b). *** COUNT IV: Disorderly Conduct in a Capitol Building 40 U.S.C. § 5104(e)(2)(D)
requires that (emphases added): (2) An individual or group of individuals may not willfully and knowingly— *** (D)
utter loud, threatening, or abusive language, or engage in disorderly or disruptive conduct, a






























































